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Q # Question Answer

134

Q & A updated 5.09.14 item 49 indicates as follow: Type “C” in 
Lobby 108 & Type “D” in Rooms :102 A-102-103-113& 114 BUT – 
•�101 Men’s Shower is not referenced – assume as Type D insofar as 
114 Women’s Shower is noted as Type D – nonetheless it is not 
referenced an item 49 
•�Rooms 100 Crew Operations – 106 Supervisor Office -107 Closet-
109 Support Specialist – 111 Crew Leader’s Office ARE ALL 
NOTED AS TYPE “C” on A-1.3 
-        Please note that Type “C” is designated as 12” x 12” Ceramic 
Tile in the Room Finish Legend but not referenced in item 49 of 
updated Q & A – additionally 
Tile in those locations would appear to be unlikely required BUT 
what type Floor Covering is to be required? 

Type “C” floor tile (12” x 12”) in a square pattern shall be installed in 
rooms 100, 106, 107, 109 & 111.  Type “C” floor tile (12” x 12”) in a 
diagonal pattern with a square border shall be installed in room 108 
and corridor to room 100.  Type “D” floor tile (2” x 2”) in a square 
pattern shall be installed in rooms 101, 102, 113 & 114.  Type “J” 
wall tile (4” x 4”) in a square pattern shall be installed in rooms 101, 
102, 102A, 103, 113 & 114. 

133

Division 7 RFI 
Base Bid Shingles. Are the gutters, downspouts, cladding on fascia 
and rake to be in a kynar finish or is white baked enamel acceptable? 

White baked enamel is acceptable.

132
Please confirm that all reinforcing steel for the building, fuel tank 
surround and item #603000 are to be epoxy coated.   

All rebar identified to be paid for under item 603000 is to be plain 
rebar.  The fuel tank surround is to use epoxy coated rebar.  Rebar for 
the Crew Operations Building is to be plain rebar.

131

In the supplemental specifications attached to the bid documents it 
says all pvc conduit is to be labeled  “DelDOT Traffic Fiber Optic 
Cable” Does this pertain to both the electrical conduit and the 
communications conduit.

Only communications conduit shall be labeled.
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130

I contacted Becker Morgan Group about getting an estimate to do the 
surveying work at the Bridgeville Deldot maintenance yard 
development and I was informed that they were told to have everyone 
email this address with that request. 

Requests for pricing do not need to go through the ask DelDOT 
system.  If you would like a price for survey, please contact Becker 
Morgan directly.  Becker Morgan cannot answer any project related 
questions. 

129

Item 10 on Addendum #4 says Seven (7) pages, Appendix A, 074113-
Metal Roof Panels (Alternate), pages 074113-1 through 074113-7, 
deleted, to be removed from proposal. What about pages 074113-8 to 
074113-10? Shouldn’t they be removed also?

Yes, all ten pages of 074113 Metal Roof Panels (Alternate) should be 
removed.

Monday, May 05, 2014

128

If dirt ductbanks are to be used, can the soil removed for the 
installation of the electrical conduits be re-used, or does it have to be 
Type C?

As noted on Plan Sheet 20 – Utility Contract Trenching Detail, soil 
above the Borrow Type C is “to be filled with existing material, or as 
directed in the field.” For trenches in grass areas.  Trenches in paved 
areas are to be backfilled with Borrow, Type C.  if the existing 
material meets the requirements for Borrow, Type C, it may be used.

127
Can you please clarify which ductbanks are to be concrete encased, 
and which are to be dirt? The notes and details on E-01 and E-02, 
along with Question #48 are confusing.

All are to be dirt, no concrete.

126

On sheets 74 & 75 the primary & sign lighting dash lines are 
misaligned. With the misalignment, would handholes be added or 
deleted?

It was not intended to misalign the primary and sign lighting dash 
lines, no additional hand-holes are anticipated.  Sheet 74 has the 
correct arrangement.  Sheet 75 is herbey revised to show the sign 
conduit on the top of the primary conduit.  This is currently shown in 
reverse on sheet 75.

125 If all of the panels shown on Sheet 77 are not provided, is the wire 
eliminated?

The wire for the “Future” panels are not part of this contract only the 
conduit as described in question 124. 

124
Please confirm which panels shown on Sheet 77 – Power Distribution 
Single Line – are to be included in this contract. The Crew Op panel 
is the only panel with a detail shown on Sheet 73.

The intent is to provide all of the panels except those labeled 
“Future”.  The contractor shall run conduit and stub up to “Future” 
panel locations noted on drawings.  
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123

Are the cables mentioned in Note 2 on Sheet 75 part of this contract, 
or are they owned by DP&L? Who owns the installation?

The Contractor owns the primary cable from the top of the new utility 
pole into the site to the utility transformer.  The successful Contractor 
shall confirm primary cable requirements with the utility prior to 
ordering.

122

We believe the handhole for the primary is undersized. The DP&L 
cable is 1.19 O.D. Using the NEC, you multiply this by 48 for straight 
pulls, which equals 57.12 minimum, making the Type 4 junction well 
too small. A Type 7 junction well would work.

https://www.inkling.com/read/nfpa-national-electrical-code-
handbook-2008/chapter-3/iv--pull-and-junction-boxes-for 
All of the hand-holes for the primary shall be type 7.

121

Fiberglass Column Covers for the structural columns are noted on A-
2.1 but there does not appear to be a Column Cover type or basis-of-
design provided? 

Per structural drawings, there are 6 x 6 columns, and per the 
architectural drawings there are FG column “covers”.  Use plain 
PermaWrap PVC square column cover, 12” x 12” with 12” OG base 
and 6” OG cap, or equal.

120
Wood Window Sills are noted per detail S2/A-.1 – 
• What type is required? 

Eastern white, Idaho white, lodgepole, ponderosa, radiata, or sugar 
pine, paint grade, finger joint permitted

119

# 9 Sheet E-04 indicates single line of power distribution, this shows 
panels for shop building, crew ops building, truck shed 1, and truck 
shed 2.  Then in dashed lines future buildings mower shed, fuel, salt 
barn and brine mixer. On sheet E-02 and E-03 there is a dashed line 
around the buildings with a note “All items within this area to be 
constructed by others.” Is the conduit, wire and panels to be installed 
under this contract?

Conduit, wire, and panels are already installed at Truck Shed 1, Truck 
Shed 2, and Mower Shed. Contractor shall be responsible for tying 
into these existing conduits.
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118

In reviewing the existing fuel tank to be moved from the Seaford yard 
to the new yard the following has been determined.   

The tank is a double wall but is not a flame shield or fire guard tank. 
It cannot  be located that close to a building. Minimum distance is 50’ 
for the existing tank to be used. Also it has to be 50’from a property 
line by fire marshal specs. That is stated in the NFPA 30 handbook. 
We would either have to move the tank to the distant required or 
install new tank.  Please advise. 

The fuel tank has been reviewed and approved by the Fire Marshal 
and has been interpreted as a “vaulted tank”, removing all required 
separation distances.  Please bid as designed.

117

For the flooring category there is resilient (sheet vinyl) and tile 
flooring so which one is required. Two different trades

Please list each Flooring subcontractor.

116

For the well drilling sub-contractor category would that be the water 
well drilling or for the Geothermal wells?

If the contractor is not the same, list each subcontractor.

115

I am being told there is no masonry for the building so why is there a 
masonry listed on Sub-Contractor list?

Masonry was listed in error. Fill in “N.A.” under subcontractor.

114
On the list of Sub-Contractors to be submitted with the bid you have 
a category for Electrical. I would assume that is for the Building 
Electrical and not the     site electrical is that correct?

If the contractor is not the same, please list both.
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Friday, May 02, 2014

113

Specifications provided for Metal Locker but not shown on 
drawings?   

See response to Question 54.

112 P-03(sheet 71) gas water heater shown but no gas piping indicated on 
the plumbing drawings.   

See response to Question 52.

111

M-04(sheet 67), please provide notes 1, 3, 4, and 6 on the Indoor 
Water Source Heat Pump Schedule.   
  

See response to Question 53.

110

Detail 1/M-0 (sheet 66) indicates a 1-1/4” HPWS and Detail 1/M-
04(sheet 68) indicates a 1-1/2” HPWS, please advise which is correct. 

The intent is to have a 1-1/2” HPWS&R manifold within the 
Mechanical Room 105.  The pumps are to be installed on in this 
manifold.  
The well field will be fed from the 1-1/2” manifold with two 1-1/4” 
reverse return loops. The heat pumps (HP-1 and HP-2) will each be 
fed with a 1-1/4” line off the same 1-1/2” manifold.

109
EF-1 is shown as an inline exhaust fan.  However a model “G” is a 
roof mount direct drive fan.  Please clarify what is required. 

See response to Question 107.
  

108

Please provide specifications for mechanical louvers. The louver shall be equal to Greenheck model ESD-635D with Bird 
Screen, Clip Angles, Extended Sill, Filter Rack (and Filter), Flanged 
Frame, Welded Construction, and Kynar finish.  This louver shall be 
18”x18” with a 6” deep sheet metal box (to allow for duct 
connection.  This sheet metal box shall be insulated with 2” rigid 
insulation (outside the airstream).  This louver shall intake/exhaust 
350 CFM.
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107

AS PER M-02 (sheet #65) the exhaust air louver off inline EF-1 does 
not have a size or show up on any Architectural drawings.  Please 
advise size. 
  

The exhaust fan EF-1 has been revised be equal to Greenheck In-Line 
fan, Model CSP-A710.  325 Watts, 120/1/60,  350 CFM at 0.5 ESP.  
This fan shall be provided with disconnect switch, back draft damper, 
vibration isolation hangers, solid state speed control, and the motor 
shall be thermally protected.  

The following revisions shall be made to the exhaust system:
• Rooms 101, 103, 113, and 114 shall revise exhaust air quantities 
from 75 CFM to 50 CFM.
• Room 102 shall revise exhaust air quantities from 275 CFM to 150 
CFM

106

AS PER A-1.3 (sheet #44) Mechanical Room shows 12”x84” mech 
louver and 18”x18” mech louver.  The 18”x18” mechanical louver 
says “see mech drwgs”.  This louver does not show up on M-02 
(sheet # 65).  Please advise 

The louver shall be equal to Greenheck model ESD-635D with Bird 
Screen, Clip Angles, Extended Sill, Filter Rack (and Filter), Flanged 
Frame, Welded Construction, and Kynar finish.  This louver shall be 
18”x18” with a 6” deep sheet metal box (to allow for duct 
connection.  This sheet metal box shall be insulated with 2” rigid 
insulation (outside the airstream).  This louver shall intake 350 CFM.

105

Please reference drawing S-04, which shows a W12 x 26 beam at 
elevation 12’-3 ¾. The beam is not shown in sections (architectural 
and structural), and the trusses are not modified for bearing on the 
beam. Is the beam required? 

Yes, beam is required to support the movable partition.  Change 
callout ON S-04 to “W10x68 (T/BM ELEV. = +9’-10 ½”)”

104
Please provide specifications for the ceramic tile. 
  

See response to Question 49.

103

EF-1 is shown as an inline exhaust fan.  However a model “G” is a 
roof mount direct drive fan  Please clarify what is required. 

The louver shall be equal to Greenheck model ESD-635D with Bird 
Screen, Clip Angles, Extended Sill, Filter Rack (and Filter), Flanged 
Frame, Welded Construction, and Kynar finish.  This louver shall be 
18”x18” with a 6” deep sheet metal box (to allow for duct 
connection.  This sheet metal box shall be insulated with 2” rigid 
insulation (outside the airstream).  This louver shall exhaust 350 
CFM.

6 of 21 5/9/2014



Q # Question Answer

102

AS PER M-02 (sheet #70) the exhaust air louver off inline EF-1 does 
not have a size or show up on any Architectural drawings.  Please 
advise size. 
-Please provide a specifications for mechanical louvers. 

The louver shall be equal to Greenheck model ESD-635D with Bird 
Screen, Clip Angles, Extended Sill, Filter Rack (and Filter), Flanged 
Frame, Welded Construction, and Kynar finish.  This louver shall be 
18”x18” with a 6” deep sheet metal box (to allow for duct 
connection.  This sheet metal box shall be insulated with 2” rigid 
insulation (outside the airstream).  This louver shall intake 350 CFM.

101

AS PER A-1.3 (sheet #49) Mechanical Room shows 12”x84” mech 
louver and 18”x18” mech louver.  The 18”x18” mechanical louver 
says “see mech drwgs”.  This louver does not show up on M-02 
(sheet # 70).  Please advise 

The louver shall be equal to Greenheck model ESD-635D with Bird 
Screen, Clip Angles, Extended Sill, Filter Rack (and Filter), Flanged 
Frame, Welded Construction, and Kynar finish.  This louver shall be 
18”x18” with a 6” deep sheet metal box (to allow for duct 
connection.  This sheet metal box shall be insulated with 2” rigid 
insulation (outside the airstream).  

100

Ref is made to the answers to question #2 and #3; does your answer 
indicate the outside utility lines (rainwater conductor, potable water 
line, and sanitary sewer line) will require the building trade rates on 
this project?

The building rates apply because they are utilities for the building.

99

Where is bid item 302011 and 302012 used on this project? Item 302011 #3 stone is for the level spreader on C-25 (plan page 
26).
Item 302012 #57 stone is for inside the fueling facility building on C-
20 (plan page 21).

98 What is bid Item 207000 used for on this project? This is a contingency for excavation.

97

On the Question and Answers # 47 indicates to include wire to item # 
763569; however, this item is not included on bid quantity sheet. 

The answer to Question 47 should refer to item 763538 Maintenance 
Building.

96 Section 271005, who is responsible for this specification section of 
work?

Contractor is responsible for conduit. Wire will be pulled by others.
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95

In talking with tank cleaning companies ,they suggest the best 
approach would be to do a confined entry in the tank and pressure 
wash and vacuum the tank clean. I do see that in the work scope this 
is not an acceptable means of cleaning. The companies are confined 
entry certified by OSHA .This is the most efficient means of tank 
cleaning. 

We have no objection to confined entry to clean the tank.

94
Is there a spec for the sheet vinyl flooring? See response to Question 40.

93
Have the provisions been made for drainage of the tank enclosure?   Yes, interior of enclosure is #57 stone to drain.

92
Have the state fire marshal and DNREC approved the plans at this 
point? We may save time in the long run to contact both for 
preliminary approvals on this project. 

See response to Question 91.

91

The sump under the dispenser cannot be done as drawn. DNREC will 
not approve the drain from the sump nor will the fire marshal. There 
will need to be a full size sump with stabilizer bars and emergency 
shear valves under the dispenser. 

DelDOT has received site and dispenser approval from the Fire 
Marshal. Please bid as designed.

90

The piping to the dispenser appears to be above ground or does it go 
into the ground ,under the tank pad and out to the dispenser. At some 
point it will have to go underground in order to get into the dispenser 
sump. 

Piping shall be located below grade.

89
Relating to the fuel tank relocation and install, we assume the  
dispenser is a suction pump as the drawings are not showing a 
submerged turbine pump. 

The dispenser shall be a suction pump type.

88
Bid quantity for item number 745534 2" pvc conduit is shown as 
8,390 lf.  Based off the ductbank schedules on sheets 38-40 the 
quantity is 7,990 lf.  Please confirm the bid quantity is correct.   

See response to Question 82.
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87

Bid quantity for item number 745532 3" pvc conduit is shown as 
1,239 lf.  Based of the ductbank schedules on sheets 38-40 the 
quantity is 1,785 lf.  Please confirm the bid quantity is correct.   

See response to Question 82.

86
Bid quantity for item number 745523 4" pvc conduit is shown as 
14,952 lf.  Based off the ductbank schedules on sheets 38-40 the 
quantity is 12,740 lf.  Please confirm the bid quantity is correct.   

See response to Question 82.

85

Bid quantity for item number 745582  5" pvc conduit is shown as 
11,214 lf.  Based off the ductbank schedules on sheets 38-40 the 
quantity is 10,600 lf.  Please confirm the bid quantity is correct.   

See response to Question 82.

84

Bid quantity for item number 745535 1 1/2" pvc conduit  is shown as 
13,340 lf.  Based off the ductbank schedules on sheets 38-40  the 
quantity is 3,545 lf.  Please confirm the bid quantity is correct.   

See response to Question 82.

83
Sheet 39 calls out electric conduit for sign by others, is the conduit by 
others or just the sign, there is no ductbank number for this conduit 
on sheets 38 or 39.   

Conduit for sign shall be by others.

82

Sheet 39 calls out ductbanks 14 and 20 as being 1.5" conduit with a 
quantity of 3,545 lf for the truck scale, sheet 75 note 15 labels 
ductbank 14 as being 1" conduit spare for future branch circuit from 
panel OPP to sign lighting fixture No 1.5" conduit is shown on sheet 
75.  Please clarify.   

Use conduit size and quantities shown on plan sheets 38, 39, and 40 
and use conductor sizes shown on plan sheets 74, 75, and 76.  
Conduit quantities are for total length of conduit, i.e. (2) conduits @ 
600 LF equals 1200 LF.

81

With so many questions that have been submitted that are still 
unanswered, will the bid date for this project be extended?

Yes

80

 Plan Sheet 10 calls for one electric pad which is 70.5’ X 14’. Is this 
the only pad the contractor is required to construct under pay item 
602001? Based on the details on plan sheet 20 is the toe wall concrete 
part of the pay quantity also?

Yes, the electric utility pad shown on sheet 10 is the only pad to be 
paid under item 602001. There is no toe wall included in this 
contract. Item 602001 shall include all costs necessary to construct 
the pad as shown on the plan.
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79
Flagpole – 
•Supplemental Specs page 109 as relates to 763538 indicates in item 
D – Installation of flagpole 
•Are we to assume the installation of a flagpole furnished by others ? 

Flagpole shall be provided and installed by contractor. See Breakout 
Sheet 1 Item D. See Specification Section 107516 in Addendum 4.

78

Spec 105113 – Metal Lockers
Please indicate the following:
• Location and quantity?
• Are these mounted directly to the floor or is an elevated base 
required?

See response to Question 54.

Wednesday, April 30, 2014
NOTE:  RESPONSE TO THE FOLLOWING QUESTION HAS BEEN MODIFIED:  QUESTION 43.

77 Specification Section 05120.  We are requesting the AISC 
certification  for the installer and fabricator be waived. 

AISC certification for section 051200 is waived.

76
Drawing S-04 shows beam elevation at 12’ – 3 3/4” top of beam, 
truss elevation is at 10’.  Drawing S-03 shows a beam with elevation 
at 9’ -10 ½”.  Which elevation is correct. 

The correct dimensions are W10X68, T/BM 9’-10 ½”.

Monday, April 28, 2014

75

Reference Drain Pipe Detail that is shown on Plan Sheet 20, Note 5 
says cleanouts will be provided at all bends that do not occur at a 
downspout. How many cleanouts are required and where are they 
noted on the plans?

There shall be three cleanouts. Refer to drain pipe layout on south 
side of Crew Ops Building on utility plans (C-38) on Plan Sheet 39.

74

On Plan Sheet 34 there are 2 Stab Construction Entrances Shown 
which based on size could be 105 Tons. Why is the quantity for Item 
268000 451 Tons?

The quantity includes a contingency for additional SCEs. Please bid 
estimated quantity. 

73 Have the Embankment Amounts shown on the Earthwork Summary 
been swelled 15% to make up for compaction?

A compaction factor of 0.2 was used to determine the volume of earth 
required for embankment. 

72
On Plan Sheet 4 on the Earthwork Summary it says the total 
excavation for this project is 28310 CY so why is Item 202000 on the 
pricing proposal 29726 CY?

The pricing proposal includes a contingency.

71 Are there a total of seven each down spout connections required for 
the crew operations building?

Use downspout layout on Roof Plan A-1.5. There shall be six each 
down spout connections. 
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70 Is the quantity for bid item 612502 correct as shown on the pricing 
proposal?

Yes, the approximate quantities are correct. 

69 Are the quantities for items 614750, 614827, and 614828 correct as 
shown on the pricing proposal?

Yes, the approximate quantities are correct. 

68 Is the quantity of item 612501 correct as stated on the proposal? Yes, the approximate quantities are correct. 

67
On plan sheet 39 what is the size of the sewer pipe going from the 
sanitary manhole to the septic system? Do we place any of this pipe 
or just provide an opening in the sanitary mh?

Contractor shall provide opening and seal it from debris entering 
manhole.

66 Where is legend for the different shaded areas shown on plan sheet 34 
and 35 found?

See “Pavement Sections” on C-4, plan sheet 3.

65 Is the work shown on plan sheet 26 part of this project? Yes.

64
Ref note 4 on plan sheet 21 how does the contractor determine what 
additional depth the engineer will direct us to remove and backfill 
with #57 stone. This should be a unit price item.

See response to Question 16.

63

There are soil borings shown on the plan sheets. Where are these soil 
boring results noted on the plans or specs? What is the average depth 
of topsoil strip on this project? Since it appears from earth work 
summary the material will meet a and c borrow specs will the 
excavated material be suitable for pipe backfill in paved areas or will 
we have to import borrow ty c?

See attached soil boring report in Addendum 4.  Material at the 
locations of the soil borings generally meets both Type A and C 
borrow. Material on-site that is removed under item 202000 may be 
used for backfill in areas requiring Type A or Type C borrow, 
provided the excavated material meets the DelDOT specification for 
the material required as approved by DelDOT.

62 What is the top elevation of the new sanitary manhole (item 708105)? 
Where is that shown on the plans?

See response to Question 21.

61

Ref note 12 under section 200 on plan sheet 4 it appears that once 
cuts and fills are done there will be additional material in the 
DelDOT stockpile area. Once the required fill is removed from the 
stockpile area can the excess remain in the stockpile area? Note 12 
says it will be stockpiled at a location determined by DelDOT so can 
it remain in the stockpile area or will it have to moved to a new 
location?

The material will likely remain in the stockpile area but may need to 
be stored at another location on site. 

60
Under Section 200 Note 5; what unsuitable material is this sentence 
talking about? Your earthwork summary shows all materials to be 
suitable (topsoil, a borrow, and c borrow)?

The Earthwork Summary is an estimation of available materials on 
site. Unsuitable material may be encountered and need to be disposed 
of according to Note 5. 
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59

Under general note, item 14 on plan sheet 4, isn’t DelDOT going 
clearing and grubbing on this contract? Per note 2 under section 200 
plan sheet 4.

Ignore Note 14 of General Notes on Plan Sheet 4 in its entirety.

58

Spec 074113-8, sec 3.3 makes it sound like the roof panels or 
attached to purlins. Drawings show 1/2" plywood. Which for the 
metal panels should be 5/8". Is it safe to assume that the substrate is 
plywood? 

Roof sheathing substrate shall be 5/8” plywood

57

Alternate, Metal Roof Panels. 074113-3, sec products 2.1A 3 coat 
metallic coated steel.  All trims, gutters, downspouts are to match 
panels. Price material. Sheet metal spec 076200-4, sec 2.1 states 2 
coat. Section 2.5 mentions aluminum. Please clarify whether is two 
coat or three coat and if it's steel or aluminum? 

Fascias, gutters, and downspouts shall be aluminum. 

56

Shingles 073113-2, sec 1.6 warranty. Shingles no longer come in 
40yr warranties. It's either High Definition Lifetimes or High 
Definition Lifetime "Ultras" (50yr). Please clarify. 
  

Provide High Definition Lifetimes (50yr).

55

Shower Bench Seat- 
•A shower bench seat is noted in 101 but not specifically noted as “ 
Seat” in 114 ? 
• Section 4 /A-5.1 typical bench @ shower does not specifically 
indicate the bench surface or face except to indicate 2” x solid wood 
block – 
What is the required surface ? 

•  The diagonal line in the lower left corner of room 114 is a “seat”
• 
Delete “ 2”x Solid Wood Block” and change to “ 2” solid surface 
seat, Corian or equal”  Add note to front closure panel below “seat”, “ 
1” solid surface closure panel, Corian or equal”

54

Section 105113 Metal Lockers- 
• Drawing A-1.3 does not appear to indicate nor locate the Lockers? 
Please clarify 

Delete Section 105113. Lockers shall be installed by others.
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53

M-04, Water Source Heat Pump Schedule – Notes 1,3,4,6 are 
referenced, but notes are not shown.

The referenced notes do not exist.  Please provide unit options 
defined in section 238149 of the specification

52 There is no gas piping indicated on the M/P drawings, yet the water 
heater is gas-fired.  

The water heater shall be electric not gas.  The description was not 
edited in the schedule.

51
There is no condensate drain piping shown on the mechanical 
drawings.  Will drain piping from HP-1 & 2 to the mechanical room 
rear exterior wall to dump onto grade near CU-1 be acceptable.

This is acceptable and was the intent of the design.

50

P-03 indicates a fill line for the geothermal loop in the mechanical 
room (no size), but the piping is missing on the M-05 Detail.  
Assuming the line is 1”, will it need a reduced pressure backflow 
preventer to protect the domestic water system?

This assumption is correct.  There shall be a reduced pressure 
backflow preventer on a 1” fill line (along with a shut-off valve) that 
connects to the geothermal loop.

49

Tilework-                                                                                             
Room Finish Legend on A1.3 indicates 12” x 12” Ceramic Tile floors 
(floor type C) and 2” x 2” Ceramic Tile Floors(floor type D) and 
4” x 4” Ceramic Tile Walls (wall type J) but No Performance 
Specifications for this work appears to have been provided to 
Include the basis-of-design and color selections for the indicated 
ceramic tile nor installation methods 
Note: Please locate Floor Type D ( 2” X 2” ) C11
•Absent performance specifications ,  the Finish Floor Plan on A-1.7 
indicates a different tile pattern and an assumed different tile 
that may be required at Lobby 108 ? 

See revised specification 093013 Ceramic Tiling in Addendum 3.
Tile in Lobby 108 is type “C”, 12” x 12”, in a diagonal pattern, and 
the dark tiles represent a different color tile. 
Floor tile in rooms 102A, 102, 103, 113 & 114, shall be type “D” tile, 
2” x 2”.
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48

Drywall Ceilings- 
•1- Hour Fire Rated Ceilings UL P522 (detailed on 3/A5.2) are noted 
limited to Rooms 102 Storage & 105 Mech/Elect but a review of 
drawings A-3.1, A-4.1 or A-1.6 
do not appear to specifically provide detailing at the underside of the 
wood trusses? Are we to assume one (1) layer of drywall directly 
applied to 
the bottom chord of wood trusses for the entire interior building 
ceilings exclusive of that required for Rooms 102 & 105? 
Additionally, please clarify the thickness and type of drywall ceilings-
if required

Provide 1 layer of 5/8” type X drywall over resilient channels in 
accordance with UL P533.

47

RFI #6 Per pay items in Addendum 2, there is no pay item for the 
wire to be supplied with the conduit. Please advise. 

Data and phone conduit to remain empty (to be run by others).
Electric line to power all buildings to be included in the price for 
“Buildings” (Item # 763569).

46
RFI #5 C-36 indicates dirt duct bank per General Notes # 1; however, 
E-04 Detail # 2 indicates concrete. Please advise which note to 
follow.

Provide dirt duct bank.  

45
Wood Sills are noted per detail S2/A-.1 –
• What type is required?

The Wood Sills shall be pressure treated.

44

HSS Steel Columns versus Timber Columns-
• HSS Steel Columns per detail 10/S-05 would appear by detail to be 
applicable to the four (4) exterior columns at Column line A
But Timber Columns per detail 11/S-05 are cut through that column 
line in the Foundation Plan S-02 ? Which detail is to be
Provided for the four (4) columns on Column line A?
• In consideration of the above – please clarify where detail 11/S-05 
is to be provided.
• Fiberglass  Column Covers for the structural columns (type to be 
clarified per above) are noted on A-2.1 but there
Does not appear a Column Cover type or basis-of-design provided?

Section 10/S05 to be used at Col. A/6, 
Section 11/S05 to be used at column Row A but rotate section cut 90 
degrees on plan,
Section 12/S05 to be used at Col. B/3.
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43

Alternate No.04: Insulation –
• To avoid any ambiguity, please specifically confirm the location of 
spray foam insulation to be provided – it is assumed that 
not all locations of Batt Insulation are to be provided with spray foam 
under the alternate

Spray foam alternate shall include all insulation in all exterior walls. 
It does not include sound insulation in interior walls or attic 
insulation.  See response to Question 41.

42

Alternate No. 03 : Seamless Resin Floor-
• No basis-of-design or performance specification appears to be 
provided
• No reference is made in the Room Finish Legend A-1.3 nor A-1.7 to 
the Alternate 3?
• Under Alternate 3 there is no indication or detail or clarification to 
the base – will the base remain as CT or will a Seamless Resin Base 
Be required – if Seamless please clarify requirements and height

See response to Question 41.                                                                   

41

Section 012300-
• Please confirm that except for Alternate 2 (Solar Panel Film) that 
Alternates 1 -3 -4 are still applicable and to be bid.

Upon further review, no alternates will be included in this bid.

40

Performance Specifications and/or a basis-of-design  do not appear to 
be provided for the following:
• Drywall – and to include finish level requirements
• Sheet Vinyl indicated as floor type A
• Sealed Concrete indicated as floor type B
• Signage or a signage schedule
• Cabinetry & Tops for Room 100 and as referenced in elevation 
2/A5-1
• Model # or specific product type for the Precision Ladder, Inc 1-HR-
Fire Rated product noted in the ME room on A3-1- please clarify

See revised specification 092900 Gypsum Board in Addendum 3.
See revised specification 096516 Resilient Sheet Flooring in 
Addendum 3.
Solvent-based clear sealer system, equal to Increte Systems Crystal 
Clear VOS Sealer, 2 coats. 
See revised specification 101400 Signage in Addendum 3.
See revised specifications 064116 Plastic Laminate-Faced 
Architectural Cabinets and 123623.13 Plastic Laminate-Clad 
Countertops in Addendum 3.
“Super simplex disappearing stair”, 1-hour fire rated, no specific 
model number provided by manufacturer.  Also provide an insulated 
box cover for the stair, Yankee Insulation Products, Therma-Dome, 
or approved equal.
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39

Section 10651-
• Has an approved equal been determined for the basis-of-design 
(Modernfold) ?

Hufcor Inc. 1-800-356-6968 ; Panelfold 1-305-688-3501

38

Section 08541-
• Para 2.1 indicates the basis-of-design as Inline Fiberglass Ltd but 
the phone number indicated “is not in service” – please provide 
contact
Information or email address – Additionally, for purposes of 
competition please indicate other equal products or manufacturers
• Please specifically indicate the glass and glazing type 
scheduled/required for the Fiberglass Windows (08541) are we to 
assume as para. 3.9?

•  
Online phone number 1-866-566-5656 or info@inlinefiberglass.com ; 
Viwinco Windows 1-610-286-884 or info@viwinco.com ; 
Vytex Windows 1-877-747-8735 or sales@vytexwindows.com 
•
Yes, glazing for windows and storefront should be per specification 
088000 3.9.

37

Section 079200-
• Slab sealant per detail 4/S-05 is noted – is this required at all 
locations noted regardless of finished floor requirement?

Sealant shall be required for all slabs within Crew Ops Building that 
are to be covered with architectural finish such as tile. Sealant on the 
S drawing is for the joints in the concrete proper.  The finish floor 
materials joints are per the 079200 spec, 3.7.

36

Section 076200 –
• Both para. 3.3. and drawing details do not specifically size the 
gutters and downspouts?

Gutters to be 6” type K gutter and Downspout to be 2 ¾” x 4 ¼” 
corrugated rectangular.
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35

Section 074600 does indicate or specify on : 
• Fiber-Cement Board Trim nor soffits? 
• Siding is indicated as factory primed in para. 2.1 – therefore are we 
to assume factory primed for all product to subsequently be Field 
Painted?
• Section 09900 para. 3.5 does not reference any field painting 
requirements for Fiber-Cement product (walls-trim-soffit) is 
The design intent therefore that all exterior Fiber-Cement product is 
in-fact Factory Finished?
• Aluminum clad fascias are assumed as noted on A4-1 and not 
Cement –fiber fascias or rakes

 
• 
Fiber-Cement Soffit should be added as HardieSoffit as Basis of 
Design and vented smooth product, ¼” thickness, factory primed, 
field painted.
•
Yes, all siding, soffit and trim to be factory primed and field painted.
• 
NO, the Fiber-Cement Substrate shall be factory prime coat by 
product manufacturer, intermediate coat latex, match top coat; top 
coat latex, exterior semi-gloss (gloss level 5).
• 
Correct, no fiber-cement for fascias and rakes.

Section 073113-
• Para. 2.2 in A & B indicates two(2) distinct requirements – 
drawings and details do not indicate the specific required 
underlayment materials required ?
•Additionally , para 3.1 indicates installation requirements for both 
but again the drawings are not definitive in which is to be required.

Use 3.1.B (2.2.A) over entire roof area.  Use 3.1.C (2.2.B) at ridges, 
hips, valleys, eaves and gable ends, 18” to each side of ridges, hips & 
valleys, 18” from gable edge, and 36” from eave edge.
   

• The above remains valid for the Standing Seam Metal Roof 
Alternate 1
• Section 074113 (Roof Alternate) indicates in para. 2.4 a substrate 
board – but – insofar as there is no detail for the alternate it is not 
known if this is in-fact applicable and to be provided? Additionally, 
metal soffit panels are indicated in para. 2.7 but drawings indicate 
Fiber-Cement ?

See response to Question 41.

33

Section 06100-
• Para 2.6 indicates plywood wall sheathing as not less than 3/4 “ but 
drawings including wall sections on A4-1 Indicate 1 /2 “ - ?

Plywood wall sheathing shall be ½”.

34
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32

 Section 03300-
• Para 2.2 indicates plain -galvanized and epoxy – plain is assumed 
for all steel reinforcement – please clarify.
• Waterstops para. 2.5 are not indicated in drawing details – are we to 
assume then as n/a ?
• Para. 2.6 indicates 10 mil vb but detail 1/A4.1 notes 6 mil vb?
• Para 2.9 D references both 3,000 psi and 4,500 psi but drawings and 
drawing structural notes do not appear to indicate – are we to assume 
3,000 psi for all?
locations except 4,500 psi for slabs-on-grade? Concrete notes on S-01 
do not appear to clarify.

•All rebar shall be epoxy coated.                                                       
•Not applicable.                                                                                       
•Vapor retarders shall be 6 mil.                                                               
•All concrete shall be 4,500 psi.

31

Relating to the geothermal wells,  was circulator pump head loss 
taken into account when specifying 3/4" loops?  We commonly use 
1" loops at this depth. 

Yes, the loop size shall be ¾”.

30

Relating to the geothermal wells, is any subsurface investigation 
available, either a test well or boring logs from test borings.  Boring 
logs were reportedly on Addendum 2 however we could not locate 
them.

See Formation Thermal Conductivity Report in Addendum 4.

Wednesday, April 16, 2014

29

Section 260501 of the Appendix A Technical Specifications indicates 
a contract number of T201080108; however, all other information for 
the project has a contract number of T201280104.01 – please advise.

The project number is T201280104.     

28

DP&L service on the electrical site drawings sheets 80,81 and 82 
indicate an overhead service; however, on utility drawings sheets 
43,44 and 45 indicate an underground service as well.  Please clarify 
which drawings should be used for this project. 

See revised sheets 38-40 and 74-77 in Addendum 2 indicating 
underground service.
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27 Is there a specification section for the solar portion of this project? Solar Panels are not part of this bid.

26

Sheet #80,81 and 82 show electrical site plan with conduit size and 
wire size and sheet #43,44 and 45 show utility plans and also conduit 
duct bank schedule. Please clarify which drawings should be used for 
this project.

See revised sheets 38-40 and 74-77 in Addendum 2. Conduit and 
wire sizes match.

Friday, April 11, 2014

25 With the issuance of the incorrect drawings and the new drawings not 
yet issued will the bid date for this project be extended?

Yes.

24

The pavement legend that is shown on plan sheet 3 does not match 
the typical sections that are shown on plan sheet 6 and on plan sheets 
12 and 13.

See revised sheets 3 and 19 in Addendum 2. 

23 Why does the DelDOT SWM facility shown on plan sheet 13 have a 
paving symbol shown on it?

See revised Sheet 11 in Addendum 2. Ignore hatch in SWM facility.

22
Water line quantities shown on the proposal (items 614750, 614827, 
and 614828) do not match take off quantities that are shown on plan 
sheet 44. Please clarify.

See revised quantities in Bid Sheet in Addendum 2.

21
On plan sheet 44 there is one proposed sanitary manhole to be 
installed? Under what bid item is that paid for? What is the depth of 
the manhole?

See revised Bid Sheet in Addendum 2, Item 708105. Rim Elevation 
shall be 45.0. Revise both inverts to be 41.25. Revise CO from Ops 
Bldg to Inv. 42.42. Revise CO from Shop Bldg to Inv. 42.5.

20
Is all sanitary sewer piping shown on plan sheet 44 supposed to be 6” 
PVC (item 612502)?

See revised Sheet 39 in Addendum 2. Item 612502 shall be used to 
pay for downspout drains. See revised bid sheet for Item 612501 4" 
PVC and Item 708105 SS Manhole.

19
Is bid item 614555 supposed to be a yard hydrant (shown on plan 
sheet 44)? Does DelDOT have make/model number of yard hydrant 
required?

See revised Sheet 20 in Addendum 2. 

18
Index on sheets on plan sheet 1 do not match the drawing numbers in 
the plan sheets. Please clarify.

See revised Sheet 1 in Addendum 2. 

17

Storm pipe quantities on the proposal do not match take off 
quantities. Please verify. There is a bid item for 24” x 38” RCP pipe 
yet the plan sheet shows 27” x 42”. Please clarify.

See revised plans in Addendum 2. 
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16
Reference note 4 on plan sheet 26 how does the contractor determine 
the depth of over excavation and refill with #57 stone the engineer 
will direct him to dig with this cost incidental to the fuel tank 

d? Thi h ld b id it i it d t

See revised Sheet 21 in Addendum 2. Note 4 is incorrect. Cost for 
overexcavation shall be paid under Item 212000 Undercut Excavation 
and No. 57 stone paid under Item 302012 DE No. 57 Stone.

15
Per DelDOT standard specs will all pipes under 24” in diameter get 
backfilled with borrow TY C and that cost incidental to the pipe 
b i i t ll d?

See Note 10 of Section 200 of revised Sheet 4 in Addendum 2. All 
pipe excavation for all sizes of pipe will be incidental to particular 
i it

14
On the proposal there are two 15” RCP flared end sections. Where 
are these shown on the plans?

See revised Sheets 10 and 11 in Addendum 2. 

13
On plan sheet 12 there is one 18” RCP FES shown yet there is no bid 
item on the proposal for an 18” RCP FES.

See revised Sheet 11 in Addendum 2. 

12
On plan sheet 13 there are two each 48” x 30” inlets shown that are 
not shown on the pricing proposal. Please clarify.

See revised Sheet 11 in Addendum 2. 

11

On plan sheet 15 it appears that there are the DI-5 inlets shown. 
Please clarify.

See revised Sheet 15 in Addendum 2. 

10
It appears that numerous soil borings have been taken on site yet I 
only see 2 soil boring results shown on plan sheet 35. Is other soil 
boring information available?

See attached report in Addendum 2. 

9
Based on a quantity of top soiling that is shown on the proposal 
(25091 SY) the quantity of topsoil required in the earthwork 
summary on plan sheet 5 is incorrect. Please clarify.

See revised Bid Sheet and revised Sheet 5 in Addendum 2.

8

Note 18 on plan sheet 5 makes reference to MP of traffic bid item yet 
I don’t see a bid item on the proposal for maintenance of traffic. 
Please clarify.

See revised Sheet 5 in Addendum 2. 

7

You show 26300 CY of excavated material meeting a borrow and a 
quantity of 35990 CY of a borrow required which is a shortage of 
9690 CY yet there is no bid item on the proposal for borrow TY A. 
Please clarify.

See revised Sheet 4 in Addendum 2. There is a surplus of Type A 
Borrow.
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6
In earthwork summary on plan sheet 4 you show 17000 CY from 
cross sections and topsoil stripping of 16172 CY which should be 
33172 CY. Where does the 6480 CY from other sources come from? 

h l f hil h bid i f i

See revised Sheet 4 in Addendum 2. There is no longer excavation 
from other sources.

5

On earthwork summary on plan sheet 4 you indicate that the site is 
short 10380 CY of borrow TY C yet there is no bid item for borrow 
TY C on the proposal.

See revised Sheet 4 in Addendum 2. There is a surplus of Type C 
Borrow.

4

If DelDOT is doing the clearing and grubbing on this project (per 
note 3 under project notes on plan sheet 4) which is note 8 on plan 
sheet 4 applicable to this contractor?

See revised Sheet 4 in Addendum 2. Note 8 is applicable if contractor 
encounters material described in note during excavation.

3

What wage rates are applicable to the Water Well and Fuel System 
since there are both inside and outside the Building?

 

The Building Rates apply to the Operations Building and utility 
construction associated with the project.  This includes the 
construction of the utility trench and installation of electrical feed 
lines as well as the installation of the potable water well for the 

j

2

What is the break point for the Building Wage Rates versus the 
Highway Wage Rates?

The Building Rates apply to the Operations Building and utility 
construction associated with the project.  This includes the 
construction of the utility trench and installation of electrical feed 
lines as well as the installation of the potable water well for the 
project.  

1 Is there a Table of Contents for Appendix A? See Addendum 2 for Table of Contents. 
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